
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, May 1st, 2012.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson (absent)



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 
Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member 
Peter Daly, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney

 



Ed Vergano, Town Engineer



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning  



*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF APRIL 3, 2012
So moved, seconded.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I submitted to Chris a few typos.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
RESOLUTIONS
PB 11-11    a.
Application of CRP Sanitation, for the property of 2 Bayview Road, LLC, for Site Development Plan Approval for the demolition of approximately 8,000 sq. ft. of an existing 10,300 sq. ft. one story block building and the construction of a 12,320 sq. ft. one story steel building (for a total building area of 14,300 sq. ft.) and for the parking of trucks and roll-off containers and for the renewal of a Special Permit for a Contractor’s Yard on a 6.388 acre parcel of property located at 2 Bayview Road as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Amended Site Plan for CRP Sanitation” prepared by Cronin Engineering latest revision dated January 25, 2012 (see prior PB 15-02).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I believe we have a Resolution for that. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I’ll move that we adopt Resolution 12-12.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. John Klarl stated we adopted 12-12 on file 11-11.

PB 21-08    b.
Application of Nida Associates for Final Plat Approval of a 3 lot major subdivision of a 4.28 acre parcel of property located at the northeast corner of Albany Post Road (Route 9A) and Baltic Place as shown on a drawing entitled “Subdivision Plat for Nida Associates, Inc.”, prepared by Scott Gray, P.L.S. latest revision dated December 3, 2011.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 13-12.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW)
PB 7-09      a.
Letter dated February 22, 2012 from David Steinmetz, Esq. requesting an amendment to the approved Site Development Plan for the Yeshiva Ohr Hamier and for a revised Wetland Permit and a Steep Slope Permit to eliminate the approved the approved proposed construction of an on-site wastewater treatment plant and permit the construction of an on-site pump station for a sewer line and a gravel service road to access the pump station for property located at 141 Furnace Woods Road  as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Daniel A. Ciarcia, P.E. dated February 21, 2012.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated good evening Madame Chair, members of the Board.  David Steinmetz from the law firm of Zarin and Steinmetz here this evening representing the Yeshiva Ohr Hamier.  I’m going to try to be brief.  Although this is a public hearing and I think we should just answer the questions for the record and address some issues that the Board raised.  I would note for the record I don’t believe there is anybody in audience thus far for the public hearing.  As the Chair indicated, this is a fairly straightforward application that we’ve discussed with your Board previously although the Yeshiva did receive amended Special Permit and Site Plan Approval for an upgrade of its facility including the construction of a wastewater treatment plant, since then, we have been working with the Town, with the county, with outside consultants and I believe we have achieved a solution to eliminate the need for a wastewater treatment plant and to proceed with a direct connection to a sewer.  As a result of that, we need to amend our Site Plan.  We need to eliminate the proposed wastewater treatment plant, the trench and the point discharge to the stream.  We need to insert, instead, a small pump station on the site as well as proceed with the Town for the construction of an approximate 7,200 linear foot connection to a sewer manhole located at the intersection of Lafayette and Ridge Road.  Dan if you could just throw the route survey on the – so we hit it for the Board.  While Dan’s bringing that up, I want to address also some timing issues that some of the Board asked.  Here we are in May of 2012.  We have scheduled the demolition of Dodge City for this summer of mid-July of 2012.  Reason being the students will leave the facility.  They leave the Yeshiva around the second week of July.  At the end of the first week, beginning of the second week of July and its easiest and safest for us to do the demolition when there are no students there. Students will not be there.  We will be able to do the demolition.  We would also propose to do the removal of some dead trees along Furnace Woods Road which is a condition of the amended Site Plan Approval.  New landscaping, which was also a condition of our Site Plan Approval, we would likely, the Yeshiva would install most likely in the Fall of 2012, as we understand it that’s kind of the best time to install the new plantings so that they would probably be done some time and in around November of 2012.  As far as the sewers that Dan is about to bring up the route survey, the sewer construction would begin probably within 30 to 60 days after all governmental approvals.  What do I mean by governmental approvals?  Right now the sewer plan and the data is in front of Mr. Vergano, it’s in front of the Town Engineer right now.  After Ed signs off on that material it gets submitted to Westchester County.  Westchester County would then review and approve the sewer line.  We’ve already secured an out-of-district user agreement from Westchester County, that’s been negotiated.  We’re essentially prepared at this point to begin construction within 30 to 60 days after we receive all of the governmental approvals.  While I’m still waiting for this, every home or every property between the Yeshiva on Furnace Woods Road and this manhole at Ridge Road and Lafayette would have the capability of connecting to the sewer line.  The sewer line is a proposed to be a four inch ductile iron pipe.  I said it was 7,200 linear feet long and each of the properties along the route would have the ability to connect to this in the future with the installation of an on-site grinder pump at each home, a grinder pump – Mr. Ciarcia has explained is approximately a $4,000 piece of equipment, that together with electrical connections that would have to be made at the home, trenching to the road, that would be approximately another $3,000 to $6,000.  So, we’re talking about each home or each property along the route at a cost of approximately $7,000 to $10,000 would have the ability to connect to this pipe.  The duration of construction of this pipe is likely 6 to 9 months.  That would be done by the Yeshiva with its own contractors in consultation and with supervision by the Town.  All I was hoping to do, if Chris hits the right button here, it’s really pretty simple.  I almost don’t need the map but I wanted everybody to see the route which I’ve described.  I think you all know the local roads but the sewer line exits the northeastern corner of the Yeshiva property out onto Furnace Woods Road.   Needless to say, the sewer line exits the Yeshiva at the northeast corner and goes out onto Furnace Woods Road.  It goes up Furnace Woods Road to its intersection with Maple and then proceeds to the left or to the west along Maple, goes out along Maple to where it then spurs to the north up Lafayette.  It travels all the way up Lafayette to the intersection with Ridge Road.  All of the construction would be done within the municipal road right-of-way.  All of the municipal road right-of-way has been identified on the survey.  Mr. Vergano has this information.  We’ve indicated where within the right-of-way this would be.  Soil and rock borings have been taken so that we have a pretty good idea of where this actually is going to go and what kind of construction constraints would be encountered.  We’re, as I said, confident that this can be done in a 6 to 9 month period with the cooperation of the Town as to work within the right-of-way.  As far as the last component, I described what we’re referring to as the Phase I construction.  The Phase I construction is the sewer.  Based upon the way your Board’s prior approvals were granted we cannot obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for the new Dodge City building until we have the sewers so obviously having the sewers is of paramount concern.  Once that’s completed we would be able to begin to address Phase II which would be the construction of the new Dodge City building.  All we were going to put before you on the screen was a route survey of the route that I just tried to describe.  I think what we’ve tried to do is answer the timing questions, the technical questions and I should mention, for the record, you all asked at your last meeting that both Mr. Ciarcia and Mr. Vergano confer.  I think they have conferred.  I think they’ve met and I believe Mr. Vergano has information that he needs to answer the technical capability and the capacity to handle these various properties.  Four inch ductile pipe, 7,200 linear feet and, as I said, each homeowner would have the ability to connect at their own election.
Mr. Robert Foley asked can I, Madame Chairwoman, ask a question?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded certainly.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in reference to the sewer and the capability of each homeowner if they choose to connect.  I think I may have asked this at the last meeting or two.  You estimated a cost of $7,000 to $10,000 per household, would there be any chance of, along the route, at appropriate intervals, some type of a connector device so that if a homeowner, let’s say along part of Maple or up to Lafayette, there’s not many homes there, wants to connect they don’t have to put their own manhole in or break into the integrity of the line you’re installing.  Would that be feasible if possible to help the homeowners?  I’m not saying in front of every house.  It’s done in other neighborhoods with other projects we’ve approved where there’s a sewer line.  Second, in looking at the map – I know you don’t have it up there, because the sewer line will go whatever direction to Maple Avenue from the pump station at Furnace Woods Road – is that east?  Which direction of the site is it – then the people on Galloway Lane or that part of Furnace Woods Road going up in front of the entrance, there wouldn’t be any sewer line there that would give those people capability.  They would have to go all the way down to at least to the Furnace Woods Road in the area of Maple to try to connect if they had to connect.  I bring it up because I believe Galloway Lane or one of those little neighborhoods is in a flat area that sometimes takes a lot of water, as I remember, in big rain storms and then impacts their septic systems.  That’s my two questions.  Connectors at intervals to make it easier, make it cost feasible for the homeowners you’re talking about in saying they could connect in the other direction the Galloway Lane route.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated but then again, Dan chime in when it feels appropriate, what Bob is referring to of course are the sewer laterals that we typically require as part of a sewer improvement projects.  Typically, to get, again, any work out of the roadway and to the right-of-way to the property line, this way in the future the residents would connect into that lateral at their property line avoiding any construction in the roadway.  That’s possible here.  Again, it’s something that the applicant and I have not talked about.  It would be quite costly of course to put in future laterals for, I believe, for what is about 80 potential users or connectors.

Mr. Robert Foley stated what I mean is every so many feet you would have to have a manhole according to the county or the sewer district…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated no, if you were to have individuals connect into this line they would be connecting individually.  If there’s 40 people that want to connect there’d be 40 connections.

Mr. Robert Foley asked really?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in other neighborhoods they’ve gone to a lateral first and maybe two or three would be bundled into one manhole which the homeowner pays or splits the cost of the manhole.  One the lateral and then perpendicular to the manhole close to the home goes to the manhole in the road.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded again, we have something like that on Lockwood in fact…

Mr. Robert Foley stated and a few other streets.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded right but again, most connections – for example, we have a low pressure system which this would be similar to up at Red Oaks, each home is individually connected to that header in the road and this would be the same thing.  Dan, I don’t know if you want to expand on that.

Mr. Robert Foley asked that many connections, if they happen, it wouldn’t impact the integrity of your line with that many connect-ins if they have that many?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that is the conclusion that both Mr. Ciarcia and Mr. Vergano have reached.  Again, it’s being reviewed by the Town’s Engineering Department, it’s also going to be reviewed the county.  In light of Mr. Foley’s question, I just wanted to be clear the Yeshiva is installing this 7,200 linear foot pipe entirely at its private cost.  Certainly should the Town or any other group of individuals or entities wish to add additional infrastructure at their expense, they certainly could do that with the permission of the Town but this is all that’s in front of the Board. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked and from the mapping, the route the Galloway Lane, that area doesn’t sound like the sewer line goes the other way.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded same thing Mr. Foley, any private group of property owners or individual property owners that want to figure out a way to connect into this pipe and bear the benefit of it traveling the 7,200 linear feet to Ridge they certainly may do so.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but I thought, in the previous meeting, you said that the maximum capacity is 75 homes and that was the existing count of homes along…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that was changed as a result of some modifications that Mr. Vergano and Mr. Ciarcia have spent the last month discussing changing the pump.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so why don’t you tell us the change?  What’s the capacity now?
Mr. Ed Vergano responded Dan, why don’t you address that?
Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded the issue you run into with a system like this is that there’s a spectrum of users on this.  The one end of the spectrum being Yeshiva Ohr Hamier only, the other being the 75 to 100 homes that eventually could tie in, may tie in and to have this thing operate properly during that time.  What we did is, originally we were proposing to use like E1 type of pumps which are somewhat of a different technology behind them and we changed over to a what’s called a grinder pump which is a strictly a cyntrifical pump and that affords us some advantages in this type of situation where you’re going to have multiple pumps running simultaneously but no way of really knowing which ones are going to run simultaneously.  That being said, what we did is we found another pump which can achieve the pressures required for this application and where it becomes critical is in the lower areas.  There’s about 100 foot of differential between the neighborhood near the Yeshiva compared to the top of the hill on Lafayette.  Even the individual homes have various conditions they have to contend with.  We found a balance that would make all this work.  And the other thing which we can do also is initially, this pump at the Yeshiva needs to be powerful enough to maintain a velocity through that pipe to keep it clean.  As time goes on and if a lot of people should connect and there’s really no way of predicting that how many and when, the pumps at the Yeshiva can be modified to reduce their output so that it maintains the balance but initially they have to be running with the largest impeller that the housing will accommodate so that it’ll keep the pipe clean.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how many is that?  Last time, one or two meetings ago you said you can hook up a maximum of 75 homes.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded right.  The people along the route – actually as you back up there’s actually two sort of groups here: one is the people who are physically tapping into this force main which potentially could be almost 100 homes.  The other category, as Mr. Foley was speaking about earlier, is the folks on Galloway.  Those people would in all likelihood be re-pumped, in other words, whether they connect to the wet well by gravity or they construct a low-pressure system over there that goes into the wet well and then that in turn will go through the 7,200 foot force main.  Potentially it could even be more than that but again there’s really no way of knowing what’s going to happen and when but we’ve built enough excess capacity into the system so this stuff could all co-exist but at the same time function during these interim phases.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the short answer, again to reiterate what I had said to you in the opening comments and you had it validated, every property between the Yeshiva’s front door and Ridge Road can get picked up.  In addition…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated existing properties.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated exactly and what Mr. Ciarcia has also explained is that we also have the capability of now potentially grabbing additional property so the 75 from last meeting is now 100 to maybe 125 properties.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and the size of that line that you said is what?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded 4 inch ductile iron pipe.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and that’s sufficient to carry that kind of a load?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it’s a pressure line.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated seems small to me.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated again, it’s a pressure line.  If it was a gravity line it would be far too small.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we could build a 3 inch line to suit the needs of the Yeshiva.  We were asked and discussed with Mr. Vergano and the county to bump it up to a 4 inch line for this additional capability.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so to go back to what Steve’s saying with the 75 to 100 that would allow, if, the big “if” any from Galloway or even the corner of Maple up Furnace Dock Road across from the Yeshiva, it looks like there’s about 4 residences there.  Again, I have no idea whether they would want to connect and the corner property at Galloway and Maple Avenue or Furnace Woods and Maple seems to be flooded sometimes.  I don’t know who they are but they would be very close to your line anyway.  I’m just looking – I think it’s commendable that you’re doing the line and having the capability for people to connect in.  It is costly for them but I’m just looking to see – especially those that are closest to your facility and would be impacted in other ways, traffic or whatever, would benefit from the sewer line if they had to connect and that’s the reason I brought it up.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I appreciate the question.  We appreciate your commending the Yeshiva for its offer.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so the demolition of Dodge City, you said, will start at what point?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded sometime in the middle of July of this summer.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and do you have a completion date for that?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I believe that that task will be completed within 3 weeks, 4 weeks.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and there’s been no change in terms of what you’re going to do from when you were originally before the Board?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded no, not at all.  The only thing that’s before the Board right now, the only jurisdictional issue is the elimination of the treatment plant, the addition of the pumps to suit the sewer line that’s it.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and the Special Permit runs out when?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded sometime in January of 2013.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated okay, thanks.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we are back hopefully on the matter of the elimination of the plant and the construction of the on-site pump station.  Clearly you have said that other people if they wish to join or wish to connect to the system can do so at their own expense so I think we’re fairly clear on that.  Are there any other issues or concerns regarding the specific matter on the table?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked I just want to go back, no to belabor it, but go back to Galloway.  So if Galloway wanted to connect their expense would be higher because they’d also have to be part of building a pipe up to Maple Avenue.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, there would be some proportionate share of the entire system.  At that point in time it would have to be a public system.  It wouldn’t be a private system.  It would be a public system.  We would develop a sewer district and their share would be some proportionate cost of the sewer district, of course.  What Dan was mentioning earlier is that rather than pump directly into the pressure line that’s exiting from the property they would actually pump into the wet well which draws by gravity sewage from the individual units at the site and in your example, Galloway if – again, I’ve had people from Galloway ask if it’s possible to connect to the system.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked where is that well located?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it’s right at the pump station.  I have had some increase from Galloway.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked anything else Mr. Kessler?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded no, that’s it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If there’s anybody in the audience who wants to address this matter please come up and identify yourself and make your concern known.

Mr. Joel Benedict stated I live at Lakeview Avenue West.  This is a private sewer line as its designed now.  My understanding is for it to become a public sewer line that you’d have to vote and incorporate a sewer district?  Can the residents incorporate this?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that would be the Town Board.

Mr. Joel Benedict asked the Town Board makes the decision for the sewer district?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded right.

Mr. Joel Benedict stated Mr. Foley had mentioned that residents would have to vote to come into this district.  Is that not true?  It’s a one to one basis?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded again, typically when districts are formed the districts are formed to underwrite the cost of the improvements of the infrastructure.  This is a somewhat unique situation that the infrastructure will already be in place so that the cost of joining the district since the infrastructure is already in place, should be relatively low but technically yes, they would have to – to form a district you would have to have a majority of the people in that district in that area wanting to form a district.  Again, with the infrastructure already in place that cost would be very low and it’s likely that they would vote to form the district. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked but if only a few individuals, not the majority of those in the so-called area, need to connect because of septic failure they can connect but sign an agreement that when and if the – well, the district will already be formed correct?  I’m trying to think of other neighborhoods…

Mr. Joel Benedict asked or is that a county district?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated again, it’s really up to the Planning Board but again the district could be formed at that point in time.  The Town Board, I’m sorry.  The district could be formed at that time or there could be some kind of a – no it would actually require the formation of a district and anybody coming in in the future, either that district would expand or it would come out of district users, that’s possible but again, there’s a number of ways to set this up…

Mr. Robert Foley stated it gets confusing.  In other words, if you only two or three or four or five or six that need to connect along this route can they even though they would not necessarily represent 51% majority of all of the homes along that route or in this district.  Can they do it without the Town or so-called local district being formed?  It’s done elsewhere as long as they agree that when the local district is formed once there’s more than 51% connected then there’s an additional tax…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I would have to discuss that with the Town attorney because right now all of the residents of the Town that receive sewer service either belong to a district or have an added district sewer agreement.  Again, this is somewhat unique but I have to discuss it with the Town attorney.
Mr. Joel Benedict asked who’s responsible for the maintenance and the upkeep of the sewer?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked the one that’s going to be constructed?

Mr. Joel Benedict responded yes.
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded the Yeshiva.

Mr. Joel Benedict stated I believe when we talked about the waste treatment plant we made some provisions to guarantee that this was maintained and up kept and didn’t deteriorate where possibly the Town or the county has to step in and pay for upgrades.  I think I’d like to see something like that in the Resolution if possible.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that concern has been raised in our discussions that we want to make sure that the area residents are clear that the pump station would be maintained things would be in order and apparently that is, Ed can talk to it better than I.  How is that handled generally speaking with the private kind of situation?  They have to have somebody who comes on and monitors this from time to time, checks it out.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.  It’s very likely that this will become, in the near future, a public system so it would be built to public standards and we would, of course, have a future interest in this and we would monitor through some agreement with the Yeshiva.  We would take a look at the system.  Right now it’s currently proposed as a private system so the onus of course is on the Yeshiva to make sure that it’s functioning properly.  We would require period reports so they would have their engineer conduct inspections and tests and do whatever would typically be required.  But again, that wouldn’t prevent us, and I’m sure we’ll enter in an agreement allowing us to oversee that process.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but they’re also subject to the Town Codes…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded of course.  ‘Oversee’ is not the word I should use, let’s say be a part of that process.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think the question is on your previous approval for the treatment plant one of the conditions of your approval was an agreement for the Yeshiva to provide information on who was running the plant, give the Town maintenance records and things like that so on the pump station, if you get to adopting a Resolution, there’ll be a new condition that will be tailored similarly for the pump station.

Mr. Joel Benedict asked who has jurisdiction over the sewer; the Town or the county?

Mr. John Klarl asked in terms of?

Mr. Joel Benedict responded if there’s a problem, let’s say there’s a odor problem with the pump house, who would address that?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s actually the county.  All those complaints go to the county.

Mr. Joel Benedict asked all those complaints go to the county.  The Town has nothing to say over that.  If it’s a private line on public property is the Town entitled to any sort of compensation for use of that public property, say a lease agreement?

Mr. John Klarl responded I think the way it’s looked at is it’s looked as a benefit to the Town since it’s going to become a…

Mr. Joel Benedict stated but if nobody hooks up to this system…
Mr. John Klarl stated I don’t think that’s the way it’s been looked at.

Mr. Joel Benedict stated I know that’s not the way it’s been looked at.  Then, my last question: the schools about a half mile down the road; Furnace Woods and Blue Mountain Middle School are looking to rebuild their septic fields.  I believe that was in the bond that was recently defeated.  What are the possibilities that they could also tap into this line?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded that’s not a question that I can answer.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that would have to be evaluated.  Again, as the applicant had mentioned there is limited capacity in the system.  There would obviously have to be some improvements to accommodate a much larger user.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated those are both schools so that would be an awful lot of usage.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded large capacity.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I guess we could look into it and see hypothetically how this would be done, how it would be handled, if at all.  But, that’s not something that we can answer tonight.  Are there any other people in the audience who want to address this particular application?

Ms. Linda McMahon stated Lakeview Avenue West.  I may have missed it.  I just got in.  I apologize about that.  I just had a question about the construction.  I believe that this is going down Lexington Avenue.  Is that where the line is?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded Lafayette Avenue.

Ms. Linda McMahon stated I’m sorry Lafayette, okay.  What’s going to be the impact of that construction as far as tearing up the road, access to the hospital, emergency vehicles, how would that be routed given that the hospital is at the end of that road?  Do we have any sense of impact on that?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded again, the construction would be monitored by the Town and there would have to be appropriate mains protection to the traffic procedures set in place before construction could proceed naturally.  It would also be built in smaller sections.  You wouldn’t have 7,000 feet of road opened at one time, it probably would be constructed in 100 – 200 foot sections at a time and then closed up and then the construction would proceed.

Ms. Linda McMahon stated but even so there would have to be traffic that’s diverted somehow even with those smaller sections.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I don’t see the road being closed.  It might be narrowed to a single lane but there would be flaggers naturally.  Again, this would be during non-peak hours so that you don’t have a large number of vehicles to contend with.  During the off-peak hours are typically in the early morning hours and the late afternoon hours you have, of course, a steady stream of traffic but a less concentrated flow so managing that traffic flow during construction would be more palatable. 

Ms. Linda McMahon asked and what was the anticipated duration of the construction?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded again, that would be from the applicant.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded 6 to 9 months because of the small sections that can be done at a time.  Were we able to open the road all at one time it would be a much shorter duration.
Ms. Linda McMahon asked if my understanding is correct, going forward, once or if this is built the upkeep of the sewer line would be the Town of Cortlandt’s responsibility?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded no it would be the owner, the Yeshiva.

Ms. Linda McMahon asked for the entire line even if residents tap into it?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded as long as it stays a private line – if it becomes a public line then of course that would be the responsibility of the district that we were talking about earlier.

Ms. Linda McMahon asked and what would constitute it a public line?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded as soon as one person connects.

Ms. Linda McMahon stated okay, thank you.

Mr. Phil Tumberello stated I live on Fairgreen Court.  I’m sorry I’m late but there’s was actually some construction over the reservoir which tends to slow down traffic of people who have places to go and things to do.  Listening to the last comment I’m curious if there has a been a traffic study of any kind done to indicate what the impact will be of the small 100’ sections of road being ripped up as I understand it the sewer line is scheduled to go down the middle of the street first in the area of the facility, Furnace Woods Road, then to Maple then for a significant stretch along Lafayette which is busy.  I suffered a little bit of an inconvenience earlier this year when there was tree work and it basically caused about an 8 mile detour to find another way around because there really is no easy way if that road is closed.  My question is whether or not the people in the neighborhood, the people in the area, the people who use those roads with some regularity will be contacted or need to be contacted or if it’s just for those residents who’ve not been following it they’re going to wake up someday and find trucks and flagmen ripping up the middle of their road, blocking or retarding traffic to a single lane?
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so your question is will they be notified?

Mr. Phil Tumberello responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I’m certain we can work out something.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated typically residents are notified.

Mr. Phil Tumberello asked will the residents upon notification at that point be afforded an opportunity to register, once all of the residents who could be notified of the traffic disturbance are notified or the traffic disturbance at that point, will these residents be afforded an opportunity to have their voices heard?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded they’re always afforded the opportunity to come to the office to look at the plans and to discuss the MPT (the mains protection of traffic procedures.)  The answer to that is yes.

Mr. Phil Tumberello stated I guess that wasn’t necessarily my question.  I have the ability to read a newspaper.  I don’t necessarily have the ability to have my views reflected in the writing of the newspaper.  Here what you’re saying is the residents would have an opportunity to look at the plans but anything they may want to say about the fact that their roads are being ripped up, their traffic patterns are being modified in some cases significantly that if they do at that point, upon notification, wish to have their voices heard it will be too late.  Is that what I’m hearing?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I think we’re wondering what you mean by have their voices heard.

Mr. Phil Tumberello asked some people have been following these developments over a period of years.  I think the people who live along this route and who travel Maple Avenue, who travel Furnace Woods Road, who travel Lafayette at some point will they A) be notified that their travel routes, the ways they go, will be disrupted for a period of 9 months maybe more, maybe a little less?  Upon receipt of that notification will they have an opportunity to raise their voice and say “we don’t want our road ripped up?  We don’t want our lives turned upside down.  We don’t want to suffer the inconvenience of detours,” or at that point when the mass of people who at some future point may have the right to tie into a sewer district, will it be too late for them to say “we don’t want our road ripped up?”  That’s my question.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I think it would be.  Once we approve the project, it goes forward from that point.  This is why we have public hearings.  You’re making your voice known now and this public hearing is advertised.  From what I can see there don’t appear to be a ton of people here to express any concern about this other than – because this is one of the things that when we have the other application earlier – the earlier pieces of this application had to do with doing a whole treatment plant and people were very upset about it and they wondered about whether it would be maintained and whether it would have odor problems.  There were a number of issues that were raised.  At this point they’ve decided that they’re going to do…

Mr. Phil Tumberello asked ‘they’ being the applicant?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded the applicant, has decided to do the sewer line which was supposed to be a much better approach, the sewer line with the pump station, so they have opted to do a more costly project, things that people had earlier urged them to do.  So, now we’re talking about when you get right down to it now you do have to rip up the streets to put the lines in.  I mean that just goes without saying.  We do that all the time in this Town.

Mr. Phil Tumberello stated for this length of road I suppose you point out that there may not be a lot of people here then on behalf of myself as a committee of one who traversed these very streets in order to get here this evening I would like to pose an objection to the ripping up of these streets even if it’s done in 50, 100 foot increments at a time.  That being my first point.  My second question is what would be the bonding requirement?  As I understand it we will be looking at a privately funded and constructed sewer line.  It’s going to run I think 7,000 feet if my recollection is not too far off – what inquiries, investigations and due diligence have been done to assure that A) the funding is in place before the first shovel is placed in the ground and to assure that there is adequate funding and an appropriate bond to make sure that this facility is maintained certainly for the three year initial permitting period and also I think that it would behoove this Board to be concerned with the long term financial security of maintaining this district, if it remains private.
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded issues of bonding are not taken up by this Board.  That would be handled…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated actually the Highway Department, since it’s their road, would charge, of course, a required bond securities.  Obviously this is not a simple lateral connection.  Even on a simple lateral connection they require, I believe it’s a $1,500 security.  Since this is a much more substantial disruption I’m sure the bond would be…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked it would be thousands wouldn’t it?  The bonding would be in thousands of dollars?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded of course.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated multiple thousands.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated unless again a simple lateral connection from a house to a sewer line or…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked if this gets approved won’t that, in fact be in the Resolution?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, we’ll make reference to that in the Resolution.

Mr. Robert Foley asked could we also have a Resolution, a stipulation about a phasing in for the roadwork that it be done in sections of a few hundred feet so that there wouldn’t be that much of an inconvenience?
Mr. Ed Vergano responded again, that would be – that’s typically addressed in the Maintenance and Protection of Traffic Plans which I have not seen yet.  Again, keep in mind, the installation of utilities is nothing new to this Town.  Thousands of feet of utilities are installed every year either by the municipality or by ConEd or Verizon or whoever.  Again, I believe we have procedures in place…

Mr. Robert Foley stated for watermain repairs, etc
Mr. Ed Vergano responded main repairs, whatever.

Mr. Robert Foley stated but I mean we could, with a condition facilitate the concerns of the area residents as to the impacts on the roads.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. Phil Tumberello stated finally, listening to the discussion about the potential for forming a public sewer district which I believe would be a condition precedent to the very first homeowner resident connecting to the sewer district.  At that point I presume the creation of a public sewer district would result in taxable events to any of the homeowners who do decide to tie in.  prior to that time, during the entire period of time from the commencement of construction through such time as when, or if it becomes a public sewer district, what will be paid to the Town by the applicant for all of the Town must go through in scheduling traffic and disrupting the lives of the Town residents?  I know there’s a benefit to the Town, or at least I think there’s a minor benefit to the Town that they have from the taxes I pay on my home.  I’m just curious as to whether or not there would be any funds that flow into the Town Treasury from this applicant in connection with this very major construction project.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded when it becomes public; correct me if I’m wrong, they pay.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I believe there’s a two-fold question here; when it’s private there are road opening fees that would have to be paid of course.

Mr. Phil Tumberello asked what would those be if you could approximate them?  I know how much I pay for my tax on an individual one family home which only takes up a small square of dirt.  I’m curious as to what the fee would be that the Town would collect from this applicant for running this 7,000 foot sewer line?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I’m sorry I’m not in a position to give you an estimate at this point.  That’s something that’s typically negotiated and it’s going to involve the Town attorney and it’ll involve the Highway Department.  I don’t know what that fee would be.

Mr. Phil Tumberello asked will the amount of the fees paid by this applicant be subject for discussion in open form such as we are tonight?
Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s up to the Planning Board.

Mr. Phil Tumberello asked I did have one more question but I suppose I’ve lost my train of thought.  I thank you all for having afforded me this opportunity to have been heard.

Mr. Robert Foley asked let me ask Ed, maybe I should know this, is this connecting to the Peekskill Sanitary Sewer District?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so in other words they would be paying that tax an annual tax into the PSST, the county tax.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s true.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and then the people who additionally connect in, they would pay a percentage of whatever pro-rate, or a tax in and then a larger amount….
Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, there’s a yearly fee, there’s a yearly tax that all users in the Peekskill Sanitary Sewer District pay to the county.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I, as an individual homeowner, pay about – it used to be 125 or maybe 250 now a year, but I have the benefit of the sewer which is wonderful.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I have a question.  I’m confused a little bit now.  If this were to become a public sewer district do the homeowners that connect in the district pay for the – not only for the installation of their line but do they pay for the maintenance of the sewer district or is that spread…

Mr. Ed Vergano responded maintenance they pay.  The physical improvements would already be complete so they’re not paying for capital improvements, they’re not paying for infrastructure, that’s already complete, but they would be paying, obviously for their connection they’d be paying for and also some fee to be established to maintain the system…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it’s only the people that potentially connect into the line that would be paying for any maintenance on that district not others?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded well actually there was a point that was brought up which was by the resident which is true.  Depending how we form this initial district, and I’m not quite sure how it would be formed.  Let’s say for the sake of argument that every other house along the bottom of Lafayette wants to join the district, do we carve out a district just for every other house or do we take a group of homes and petition them to see if they’re interested in joining this district?  As soon as they join the district they’re obligated to pay whether they hook up or not. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated if they’re in the district.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so anybody outside of the district would not be incurring any additional cost if this should become a public sewer district?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s right.  If somebody outside the district could adjoin we could either expand the district or they come in as an out-of-district user.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and is the Yeshiva and the houses along that route, they’re not already in the Peekskill Sanitary Sewer District or they are?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded no they’re not.  They would have to petition as the Yeshiva did to get into the district.  It’s a very important point.  It typically takes 9 months to a year to get into a district.

Mr. Robert Foley stated then it’s the Town and the county approval I believe.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded right, the county would have to approve the individual homeowners petition to be a part of the county district.  Again, there’s a county district and there’s a municipal district.  

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked the monitoring of the lines and the pumps and all that, that is a procedure that’s in place already for private systems like this?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, we do it all the time. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked how often does the Town get involved or do you just get reports from the one event?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it depends, of course, on the application.  Sometimes it’s a matter of reports.  We always are involved in some level of oversight ourselves, personally.  We have professional engineers that are out in the field all the time checking on construction and post-construction issues.  Yes, there would be reports required from the applicant in this situation which would be detailed in the Resolution.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated so we would detail that in the Resolution so that we would get to hear those reports as well.

Mr. Robert Foley responded yes, but if there was a failure of the new pump station there would be an alarm system?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, it’s a dial-in system.  It’s wired into a central alarm station just like every other pump station in Town. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody else in the audience who wants to address this application?  Then we’ve reached a point here where we will need to have a motion.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairman I move that we close the public hearing.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this public hearing is closed.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated maybe we should bring this back under ‘old business’ and discuss terms and conditions perhaps of the Resolution?  It seems like there have been enough issues here that we may want to all be in agreement on what needs to be included here.  
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked do you want me to try to get some stuff to give you something to react to?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes, absolutely and certainly have some of these hard numbers that we need in terms of the bonds and things that we can look over.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I’ll prepare some sort of draft Resolution with conditions that will be talked about at the work session, hopefully in depth, if not all comfortable then it won’t get adopted in June and gets held over but if you are comfortable then it can be adopted. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated a lot of the issues, obviously, the minutes should be ready by that time.  You could go over there and double check that you’re covering everything that has come up, obviously the concerns of the residents in the area.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the other big thing that I think we want to do is we’re taking the old Resolution, whatever that number is, and redoing it because keeping in all of the conditions associated to the other ones.  So, it will be many new conditions based on tonight’s discussion plus most of the old ones that aren’t related to the sewage treatment plant being carried over.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you’ll bold the new stuff?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and that’ll be before the Board for the June meeting.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated at their work session right.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated right.

Mr. John Klarl stated and recently we had a staff meeting where we went over all of the conditions…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated exactly.  Madame Chair, you’ll recall you actually asked us to do that in advance of tonight so we did convene a staff meeting to go over that and it sounds like there’s some additional items.  I just want to note for the record, and we can all confirm this subsequently, I believe some of the issues that were being discussed may not be Site Plan jurisdictional issues in terms of the bond, the road opening Permit and all of that.  I don’t believe I’ve ever seen road opening fees and road opening bonds contained in a Site Plan Resolution because they’re all considered off-site ministerial permitting by the Town.  I’ll defer to John and Tom and we can discuss this off line.

Mr. John Klarl stated there’s a separate process for it.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated yes, so I didn’t want, Steve, for those of you that were asking questions, I don’t want anybody to be caught off guard at next month’s meeting.  I’m listening to this discussion completely prepared to make sure that this applicant, like everyone else, as Ed says, who opens a road in the Town complies with the Town’s Code but should do so in the same way as everyone else in the Town who opens the Town’s roads.  I’m not quite sure that road opening Permit fees go in a Site Plan Resolution.  So you all know, technically my Site Plan application relates to the four corners of the site with regard to the elimination of the treatment plant and the construction of the pump.

Mr. John Klarl stated if we put a condition in it would be an advisory to let you know that’s what you face in a separate process.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated there’s a couple of ways to handle it but we could do it as just advisory, we can actually meet with the Highway Department and establish as much as we can.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I think that would be the best thing so that we can answer the questions.  So the Board’s clear, nobody’s trying to avoid making a payment or a Permit or a fee that should be paid, it’s just whether or not it’s regulated as a Site Plan condition might not be appropriate.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s the end of the public hearing for those of you who are here unless you want to just remain and hear the rest of the agenda.  The public hearing has been closed and we’ve taken a vote and so we’re done with that particular…



*



*
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OLD BUSINESS 

PB 2-11      a.
Application of Philip and Barbara Boyle and Philip Boyle Jr. and Elizabeth Boyle for Preliminary Subdivision Approval for a 2 lot major subdivision (adjustment of existing lot lines with no new lots created) of two parcels totaling approximately 7.47 acres located at 39 & 49 Montrose Station Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Preliminary Plat Showing Minor Subdivision for Philip & Barbara Boyle and Philip Jr. and Elizabeth Boyle” prepared by Robert Baxter, PLS dated September 20, 2011.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated although this application is categorized as a subdivision, essentially it really is a lot line adjustment and so no public hearing would be necessary for this.  We do have a Resolution that we prepared.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair, I move that we approve Resolution 14-12.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 1-11      b.
Application of Croton Realty & Development Inc. for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 26 lot major subdivision, (25 building lots and 1 conservation parcel) of a 35.9 acre parcel of as shown on a drawing entitled “Subdivision Plan for Hanover Estates” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin III, P.E. dated February 14, 2011.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we had a meeting after our work session last week and there were a number of issues or concerns, there were no issues just concerns raised and discussed at that meeting so that you’re very much aware of them.  Most of them centered around the scope for the project and they ranged from – I think in the end we decided we would probably want to go with the original or the conventional plan as the target for the dice…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated as the base plan.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated exactly and then we could use one of the alternatives plus possibly the charrette as other alternative ways of looking at it.  Basically it’s basically the conventional layout with or without a field, then with buffeting around – a number of people mentioned a 100 feet buffer all the way around the perimeters.  Personally I’m not sure we would need a 100 in every area of that layout.  Some of it might be 65, some of it might be 75, some of it might be 55 depending on what trees already exist there and how…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated appropriate buffers as determine the need.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated exactly.  What I think we’re all concerned about though is there would be enough shielding, enough depth to this buffer so that there wouldn’t be – the project site itself would not be all that clearly visible to people in the neighboring site of Apple Hill and there are other issues some of the Board members could address as well.  Is there anybody who wants to…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded maybe Ms. Taylor that you all have the scope dated May 1st, it would have been in your packets, so…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked well you want to go over these specific items?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well there’s only a couple of them.  If you go to page 3 – that was a discussion about adding information regarding where proposed the sports field.  That was my attempt to talk about the size of the field, all of the issues associated with the field so I added if anyone thinks more needs there.  Ownership and maintenance of the field was another thing that was discussed so I added that.  Then you go all the way to page 8 which is into the traffic section where we talked about, at the bottom of page 8, where proposed they have to analyze the impacts of traffic flow from the multi-purpose field.  Then page 9, we talked about comparing this to Emery Ridge which is right across the street.  Now, maybe before we leave the traffic section, which there’s a change on page 8 of traffic and page 9 of traffic that Ed can briefly explain that I think we’re having our traffic consultant do the traffic study this time.
Mr. David Steinmetz asked have you determined which traffic consultant will be doing this?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it’ll be AKRF.  It’ll be Anthony Russo.  I met with Anthony and his team in my office yesterday and we went over the scope of the scoping document and we also reviewed a document that I prepared about 8 months or so ago suggesting certain procedures and protocol be followed in the preparation of the traffic study.  It was a rather lengthy discussion.  We talked about using synchro or other types of computer modeling software.  We’re very concerned, of course, with the intersection of Croton Avenue and 202 and the other intersections that were cited at the work session.  This could all be modeled of course and rather than just state to the Board that we’re talking C levels, D levels, E levels you can actually see on the computer screen what that actually means and it’ll give the Board I think a much clearer understanding and representation of – so they can comment on whether or not “yes that’s what I witnessed or no that’s not what I witnessed.”  If that’s the case the model can always be tweaked.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but along those lines I think Mr. Russo has a copy of the scope so he could conceivably look over our traffic section and maybe want to add or change a couple of things.  We were thinking that as long as I get those additions back, get them to you early enough and can incorporate them into the document, it would be incorporated for the public hearing.  Obviously the public hearing is an additional opportunity to add more or change more.  But, the traffic section is going to be worked on by AKRF.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we should have that scoping document – the revised scoping document from AKRF within two weeks.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the only thing that I would suggest, and again I mentioned this to your Board at the last meeting so I reiterate it because I think time now becomes critical, I strongly encourage the Board, if you’re going to have your own traffic consultant doing the work, which is fine and we understand that the, at least the base counts be conducted and done within the next 30 days if at all possible while school is in effect, while fields are still being used and all of that so that neither the applicant nor the Town finds itself missing important data.  Anthony knows what works needs to be done.  The applicant’s prepared to fund the Town’s consultant doing the work and establishing the empirical data.  Let’s get it done before the middle of June.  I don’t want to wait to come back here on June 2nd and find out that we still haven’t made those arrangements.  I think it’s to your detriment as well.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated also, because we’re still on the topic of traffic, the applicant’s preferred plan, the conventional one shows some degree of access to Apple Hill.  One of the things I think we should do then is to check: what would the traffic be coming through that access if they were doing it on a daily basis, if we were doing it only on an emergency basis?  What would be the impact versus no access at all?  Somehow we probably would, in terms of how we want this to play out ultimately, how we want it to look, how we could function.  That whole thing about access to and from the Apple Hill development may play into that, may factor into how we want this to come out…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s fine to the extent that it’s your consultant doing it.  I’m assuming you’ll direct your consultant to do what you wish.  I want the record to be clear, the applicant told the charrette, and I know at least one member of the charrette is here, the applicant would do whatever the Town and the charrette ultimately decided.  The applicant knows that Apple Hill has a right-of-way up here on the map that goes right up to the property line.  In fact, I showed everyone in Apple Hill their subdivision map that you all approved back in the ‘80s that shows a dedicated municipal right-of-way going right to the Croton Realty property line.  My client does not need that road connection, is not suggesting that there be a road connection nor is my client insisting that there be emergency access.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but isn’t that your base plan?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded it was in the base plan originally and just so we’re all clear, we don’t need it in the base plan here.  We’re just using the base plan because that was what was originally submitted to the Town.  Steve made very clear to us by the Town’s consultants during the charrette process at the end that that was coming out.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so you want to change your base plan to be studied to not include that?  We’re only using your base plan because that’s what you gave to us.  If you want to change your base plan to be the base for the study of the DEIS, tell us now David.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded very simple.  We’re happy to do whatever your – we already went through this once on the charrette so I don’t want to do it again Steve but the applicant doesn’t need the emergency access.  If the Town wants it studied, you have every right to have it studied.  I’m not going to tell you you can’t study it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the reason that this is coming up is because there seemed to be a consensus on the Board that we should use for the dice, the specific plan that was submitted, the original as they put it, plan and the original has this access.  Now, again I’m not necessarily and I don’t know that everybody on the Board is pushing for that access but the point is if we’re going to do the study then we’re going to do the study.  Now, if you really feel that you can change your plan and you want to change the plan in some way then, as you know, I’m anxious to see what it is you would be looking at differently given that you’ve already been through the charrette process, what would you be looking at but I’m only one person on the Board.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated understood.  Responding to the Chair, to Mr. Kessler, to the entire Board, we want to kick off this process as cooperatively with you as we possibly can so don’t mistake my comment – I want to make sure we’re all together on this.  I believe we went back to the conventional plan as the base plan largely for density and size of lots and location as well…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I also think magnitude of impacts and one of the magnitude of impacts is a potential connection which I don’t think anyone necessarily is in favor of but similar to studying disturbances to slopes and access to Croton Avenue which are shown in the conventional plan which is probably not going to happen, you might as well have as much information as you can talking about that connection.  I would think you might as well just do it as part of the…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated agreeing with Mr. Kehoe, if the purpose of that exercise, I agree with Chris, is to study it in essence to knock it down and show why it may not be wise to have it happen…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s not exactly what I was saying.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let’s suppose for example that we decide that we want that, just to say – this is a hypothetical, we want it but we want under emergency access basis.  First thing people want to know is “well what’s the impact?”  We know the impact because you’ve studied what it would be if people were just going to come through on an emergency basis.  We know what we’re dealing with then we’d have to go back now and have the traffic consultant get involved again.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and here’s my answer, my answer is the plan in front of you is the base plan.  We’ll work from that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated moving on from transportation then you really get to the alternatives which are the last pages, page 12.  The one that you have now dated May 1st, the letter ‘C’ the cluster alternative of multi-purpose sports field I think after it says “buffer adjacent to Apple Hill on Croton Avenue along the eastern edge of the property” I would have to add a sentence “a buffer separating the proposed field from the nearest proposed homes.”  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I would recommend we go back to the language that Loretta was referring to earlier that rather than having a specific 100 foot number in there that just seems to be pretty much coming out of thin air, appropriate buffers are what we are going to examine.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t know if I want to leave that up to you.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s not up to me.  Ultimately the finding statement is yours Mr. Kessler so it’s not a question of up to me.  What I’m suggesting is for you to recommend just arbitrarily studying a buffer on top of a buffer of 100 feet…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what’s a buffer on top of a buffer?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded well they have a 25 foot buffer is what he’s talking about.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes, but 25 is completely inadequate.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s not enough.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked what was the Coleman report recommendation?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded he said 75.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated right now I have a legislated setback from your Town Board of how far that home needs to be from the rear property line.  Right now, Apple Hill has a legislated setback from its rear property line.  You’re suggesting, you have a right, you’re suggesting that we study whether or not buffers would also be appropriate, totally fine with studying buffers but I want to study buffers, as the Chair suggested, as they lay out.  In some instances a buffer of 25 feet may be perfectly acceptable.  In some places a buffer of 100 feet may be more appropriate.  So, I’m suggesting that rather than the Board, for SEQRA purposes telling the applicant that all of its alternatives have to have an arbitrary 100 foot buffer is unwise.  You didn’t do that for my neighbors at Apple Hill.  Again, I don’t want to get off track but…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated nobody was here for Apple Hill.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated understood but the fact of the matter is what are we doing right now?  We’re actually discussing buffers to protect the Apple Hill neighbors.  That’s fine but the Apple Hill neighbors have several 100 feet in their rear yards that they too can use for buffering.  So, rather than saying to my client that my client has to arbitrarily impose a 100 foot band of buffer, let’s look at it as we study it and you’re going to have every right during the approval process to decide what is and what is not appropriate.  I don’t decide what’s appropriate, you do but I don’t think you have a right to say…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so what would you propose in terms of the distance from the sports field?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the distance from the sports field may be very different than the distance from the homes.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I agree.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and it will.  I think it will be.

Mr. Robert Foley asked are you talking site specific on the buffers?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the answer is yes Mr. Foley.  The Chair said it at the beginning of this that we should be looking at appropriate buffers.  Let’s look at the trees.  Let’s look at the topo.  Let’s look at the house site and ultimately we’re going to have alternatives that analyze appropriate buffers.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and you’ll have Mr. Coleman and our tree person all along and they’ll be reviewing the DEIS.  They can say in this area they’re showing 65.  They think it’s sufficient but he thinks 100 is sufficient.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how are you going to determine an appropriate buffer from the ball field?  Just give me conceptually.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded I think it’s not necessarily a straight line distance because in this case here the field is going to be below the home sites.  I believe on the alternative or on the cluster alternative that we’re most familiar with there’s going to be a field, a slope up to the road, the road, and then I believe the house is on the other side of that road.  I would expect the way we have it laid out now, and I’m going strictly from memory…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the fact is that there are houses that are not on the other side of the road.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated I think that’s what?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded 14.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated that one there would probably be moved and then after that then I think we’re going to be on the other side of the road and at that point I’d say 100 feet perhaps.  But, keep in mind, the person that buys that house is going to buy it knowing that there’s a field there.  It’s not like they’re going to buy the house and then three years later a field’s going to pop up.  If the Board decides they want to go with the field, that field’s not going to be a secret to anybody who buys in this development.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we obviously, Mr. Kessler, have to look very closely at that lot.  Again, I think that’s another comment that the Chair made two or three meetings back that was the one lot you pointed to right at the beginning, we know that’s going to be a lot we have to scrutinize.  Our client wants to make sure it’s marketable so our client is not going to design it and lay it out in such a way that if you decide you’re putting a field in there, that that lot cannot be sold.  Again, my simple answer is, just don’t have an arbitrary number.  Let’s work at that together.  We’ve got a process ahead of us and we’re going to allow the design team to be creative with the buffer so if it’s got to be 106 feet in one place and 37 in another and 65, it’ll lay out in that fashion.  Certainly, along this boundary on the easterly side, am I correct Tim, I’m not on the east?  This is a totally different area than over here.  If, again without getting philosophical, if in fact the point of the buffer is to protect the couple of homeowners in Apple Hill here, which I understand why you articulate that as a concern of yours, we don’t have the same concern with the back area behind Panas in here.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but there’s also the Coleman report that dealt with that area as well.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’re going to absolutely have to look at the sensitivity of the trees and the biodiversity and wild life corridor.  It’s not like wildlife only walk in 100 foot buffers, it’s going to depend upon topo., trees, vegetation, etc.  I’m simply suggesting don’t be arbitrary, let’s do it scientifically.  That’s it.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and the mitigation that you may have to do whether it’s next to the sports field with a buffer shielding, whether it’s a fence or some type of arborvitae or something, that that’s something that the Board could require and then if you go up to the part where we walked up by the back of Apple Hill some of those trees were in bad shape and even if you do a buffer of so many feet, if the trees aren’t shielding anything, that has to be considered also.  You may have to replant.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded absolutely Bob, you and I have a year to discuss and debate this but I’ll tell you one simple fact, I have a back yard, you have a back yard.  I have neighbors, you have neighbors.  We both have the right to screen out our neighbors.  We will do everything reasonable and practical under the law to safeguard our neighbors.  Again, remember anyone that has property that bough property along this area knew fully that someone else owned property and they can put some shielding in there.  There’s nothing that stops them from doing that.  Unless you’re going to legislate a buffer, maybe we should talk about this Board legislating a buffer on Apple Hill so that the Apple Hill neighbors buffer themselves from Mr. Jacobson’s property.  That would be seemingly ridiculous right?  So, I’m not going to suggest you do that but I am going to suggest that we go into the alternatives analysis of SEQRA in a fair way, that’s it.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated but be prepared that there may be multiple revisions to the plans.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’ve never been in this Town where there weren’t.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated just don’t come back and say “we’ve already done it five times.  I don’t want to do it a sixth time.”

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’m convinced you’ve gotten so good at it after 20 some odd years it won’t take that many tries.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated getting back to the discussion we had last week at the work session, does the Board want to include as one of the alternatives the conventional subdivision with a multi-purpose field?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I thought we did.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it’s not in here.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated under that there’d be two conventional and two clusters, both – in both groups of two, one would have a sports field and one would not.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay, why not?  Just get it all in front of us and then we can…

Mr. Robert Foley asked with the conventional there’d be room for the sports field?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked how do you get the room?

Mr. Tim Cronin stated with the suggestion that Mr. Vergano just made and with the conditions that the Board is imposing on alternative B, the conventional with the various restrictions, if you take away the lots coming off of Croton Avenue you require that we provide some kind of buffer between our development and the houses along the back of Apple Hill.  You’re requesting a buffer in this area here.  You want some type of distance between the sports field and the houses that would then be in this area.  We’re looking at losing about 8 to 10 homes.  At some point I think that the practicality of the process has to come into play and we can just chisel it away to the point where we’ve got a sports field and three lots which may be perfect for some people but it’s not perfect for our client.  I just don’t know if that’s a fair alternative.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that would come out in the evaluation.

Mr. Tim Cronin asked but why study it if it’s not going to be a practical alternative from the standpoint of my applicant?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it’s up to the Board.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so you’re saying with this particular conventional, in each case, no matter what, you’d not have a field there.  Is that what you’re saying?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded the conventional is 40,000 square foot lots.  Your conditions have required that this lot, this lot, this lot come out, put the sports field in and were likely losing another one, two, three, four.  Throw in a buffer line on Apple Hill, now you’re talking about the same length of road, actually a boulevard road because of the field – you’re talking about extensive parking area.  It just doesn’t become practical.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Loretta, the answer to your question is; your correct.  The proposal is conventional with no field and a conventional with the field would be inconsistent with the applicant’s goals and objectives.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if you put that in the DEIS then what you’ll say is it’s not your preferred approach, right?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded we’ll say it’s not practical.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’ll say it’s not consistent with the applicant’s goals and objectives and it can’t be built.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked if the Board wants it in there just so that you can say “we can’t do it.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated if that’s what you’d like, we’re happy to do that.  We don’t want to waste your time but if that’s what you’d like we’re happy to do that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think you should have one without and one with just like you have the cluster alternatives as one with and one without.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated the difference is they’re both, just so you understand because I want to have some integrity in the process, the difference in the cluster is that they’re both viable projects and so of course we would study that…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that viable is not the definition of what we want in the alternatives.  We want something that we can look at and you can make a decision or a reasonable decision that says “this is not viable for the applicant but we may do it differently.”

Mr. David Steinmetz stated economic viability is the legal standard just so you’re aware, the law is quite clear that the alternatives have to be economically viable and consistent with the applicant’s goals and objectives which is why we try to fair it out alternatives that we know are not going to be built.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you have a no action alternative.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s mandated by law.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but we specify the alternatives and that’s your response to that alternative.  Going into that we don’t know that except for your statements here today so by putting it in there then there’s a record that shows that the applicant thinks it is not economically viable.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded Steve, if you’d like us to study it, we’ll study it.  We can tell you what that conclusion is now but we’re happy to put that in there if that’s what you’d like.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated kind of like we can tell you, you’re not going to get the conventional.  We wouldn’t want to do that.  I’m just saying, let’s just be honest.  We kind of know that you’re not exactly going to get that.  I understand why you’re saying what you’re saying…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it would be irresponsible if I didn’t say what I was saying Loretta.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I understand.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I do agree with that, that I think going through this whole process, at some point someone might say “well I like 40,000 square foot lots.  I bought in a neighborhood of acre lots but I have no opposition to the sports field.  How come you didn’t study one acre lots with the sports field?”

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if it’s in there, it’s in there and it just gives us more that we can…

Mr. David Steinmetz stated put it in there as a fourth alternative.

Mr. Robert Foley asked what does it become ‘E’.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, it’s that ‘C’ so it flows.  Keep those two conventional together.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are we back on 12 again?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so ‘C’ is the next conventional, the one with sports field.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, and then all of the buffering language would change to appropriate buffers.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated and with the cluster alternatives we’ll be looking at that with a tie into the sewer on the – ultimately Steven’s Lane but through Emery.  As for the conventional, do you want us to look at septic or a sewer tie in as well realizing that septics will probably increase the amount of disturbance by 30% or 40%?  If we’re looking at a reduction in disturbance then sewer’s the way to go.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked why not study sewer and septics for both, the conventional and the cluster?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded cluster we can’t do septics.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just note that and then give the reasons why.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Chris you’ll turn around with a draft scope between now and the work session?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I’ll definitely turn it around.  I’ll wait to see if we get anything from Anthony Russo because this needs to be distributed to all involved and interested agencies.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and if I could just go back a step to what we said, we kind of never nailed it down.  Anything that you guys can do, I’d love you to give specific direction to Chris and Ed to get Anthony Russo out there.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’re going to do that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated please.

Mr. John Klarl stated before the school ends.

Mr. Peter Daly asked Chris, one thing on Coleman’s report he mentions a vernal or possible vernal pool at the top end of that wetland.  Shouldn’t it be necessary to put that into this scope to further study that and determine whether it really is or isn’t because I think that might end up being a factor as to how we treat that area?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded okay.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated one last thing regarding the traffic.  If the field is ultimately built, this field will likely be used primarily on weekends: Saturdays and Sundays, it may be a good idea that AKRF take a look at what the Town has now for Saturday and Sunday field usage, go out and do those traffic counts, because this won’t be a weekday peek I don’t think with the field but make sure that AKRF takes a close look at the weekend field usage of a comparable field.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated just so you know, I actually received an e-mail today from Jim Creighton, your Parks and Rec. Committee member who knew he wasn’t going to be here suggesting a specific field.  I guess he thought our consultant was going to be doing an analysis.  He suggested a specific field that he thought ought to be examined because it would have similar size fields, parking and usage types.  So, I will pass that along.  I’ll forward that e-mail to you guys in the morning and let you pass that on to Anthony Russo because Tim’s point is well taken.  To the extent that your consultant is going to do a traffic analysis and then layer on top field usage, Creighton is suggesting that you layer on an appropriate field.  You’ll get that tomorrow.

Mr. Robert Foley asked Loretta, since I wasn’t at the special meeting can I make a few quick comments on the traffic and transportation section?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded okay.

Mr. Robert Foley stated first with Mr. Steinmetz, this wasn’t part of my comments to you since you just mentioned Jim Creighton’s name.  I see where he’s quoted as saying that it would be very appealing to have this athletic field, sports field adjacent to the existing park on Croton Avenue which has a playground, basketball courts and tennis courts.  By adjacent, it’s across the road, it’s not contiguous like other Town parks that have the bigger field with the playground and the other sports activities right adjacent and contiguous to it.  I see that as a problem.  On the traffic and transportation, if I heard Ed right, I’m glad that these guidelines that you’ve drawn up, that was a result of what had been discussed a while back with myself and some others: John Potts and there was a taskforce set up and we had one meeting.  So, I’m glad that’s progressing.  I hope it will apply here because I think it’s important to have our own, within the law, our own particular guidelines that would be tuned into specific projects.  In the scope, and I’ve said this in an e-mail to the Board members, on the ones that you’re dropping, the intersections and streets, and I’m just saying this because you’re telling us to make sure Anthony’s prepared and with your permission maybe I’ll forward my comments to him after the meeting.  I’m just concerned about dropping, I don’t mind Justin Court and maybe Jacob Street and I know Mr. Cronin doesn’t want to study and pay for too many intersections…
Mr. Tim Cronin responded no, I want you to look at that and that it makes sense to you.  I don’t want you to get…

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s what I want to explain.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated no, I just don’t want you to get a traffic study that’s six inches thick, that has more data then you’re really going to be able to evaluate.  I think you should focus your traffic study on the intersections that really make sense.  We can study more but I don’t think you’ll get a comparable of informational data or useful data out of that but that’s just my point.  I’m not saying don’t do it because I don’t want to do it.  I’m saying let’s focus our attention on the intersections that really make sense.  That’s all.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in my opinion, for anyone who knows Croton Park Colony Road, it does make sense.  Not because it’s just another street along there.  How are you going to know when the traffic consultant tries to determine the level of service at that intersection – how many cars daily or whatever hours, are coming in and out of Croton Park Colony Road?  That’s why I brought it up.
Mr. Tim Cronin stated that’s a statement you could say about any intersection along that road.  You could say that same statement about any intersection on Croton Avenue.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words, you’re saying the number of homes up from Croton Park Colony Road, and I’ve been up there the other day, which range from 30 to 50 maybe more – there are more homes than Justin Court?  I don’t think so.  I think there’s less homes on Justin Court.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded I think there’s probably more on Lynwood.

Mr. Robert Foley stated of course there are.

Mr. Tim Cronin stated so there you go.  So if you have a 100 on Lynwood and you have 50 on Croton Park Colony, I’m sure AKRF can make adjustments to come up with a reasonable number for Croton Park Colony.  Again, that’s your main intersection.  In all the times I’ve been before this Board, and I can’t say it’s never been brought up, but the major intersection is Croton Avenue and 202.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it picks up the count and the volume along Croton Avenue, including at those intersections.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded but the main intersection is Croton and 202.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I know that.  When the traffic report is done, and maybe it could help me here, maybe Anthony will, I always thought from the courses I’ve taken at Pace and talking with traffic consultants, including Anthony a few years ago, the level of service is a key factor in the determination of the disposition of the final traffic report.  If you have only two or three intersections studied or four or five, the two main ones, and it shows a decrease or the diminishing of the level of service I thought was because of the traffic volume.  But, you don’t have a count coming in and out of Croton Park Colony Road.

Mr. Tim Cronin responded but you’ll have one for Lynwood which is a larger intersection.

Mr. Robert Foley stated let me finish Tim.  Does it matter if there are two, or three, or five intersections that fall or diminish the level of service when the final traffic report is done?  If the final traffic report says yes Croton Avenue and Furnace Dock Road, I mean 202 and Furnace Dock Road at each under Croton Avenue, the level has gone let’s say – whatever it is now, from a C to D or even an F.  I’m not saying it would be an F.  But, you don’t have possibly a Croton Park Colony Road failing because of the amount of cars coming in there because you have no count.  You just have the general count up and down Croton Avenue.  That’s my question.  Where does that factor in, the total number of intersections where the level of service may be reduced.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I think it’s a good question and to the point and I think Croton Park Road should be studied.  Again, the scope of work that we have in the traffic section is not fixed yet.  As I mentioned earlier I did meet with Anthony Russo and his team.  They are looking at it and we hope to have a final scope within two weeks.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s my point, it’s not the total volume I know it’ll be picked up at each end.  How do you measure an impact of Croton Park Colony Road if you don’t have the counts coming in and out?  It would be different if there were 10 houses there but there’s not, there are a lot more.  Also, I assume the sight lines would be corrected also through a scoping process or at least a recommendations.  Then, the playground’s another issue.  I’ve heard it’s not used that often but since I referenced it in an e-mail to my Board, go there and if you have the boulevard road coming out across from the playground entrance road, which is nothing but a little incline of dirt and gravel, which is very hard to maneuver, when you look both ways on Croton Avenue for sight line it’s very chancy.  Now, you also have to consider the boulevard entrance across from it.  I don’t know whether – I guess that could be dropped but I would like that to be considered and I would like to mention that to Anthony if I could.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but that’s more of a safety design issue.

Mr. Robert Foley stated yes, they all are. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe continued rather than just a straight count issue.

Mr. Robert Foley stated because there wouldn’t be volume there but certainly Croton Park Colony Road is volume and safety.  That’s it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we could schedule the public hearing.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I’ll move that we schedule the public hearing under the scope document for the June 5th meeting.

Seconded. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated for notification purposes I’ll follow what the Code says but I’ll also notify everyone in Apple Hill.  I think that’s been in our past practice.

Mr. Robert Foley asked no other neighborhoods?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I’m bringing it up.  The Code tells me to only do adjacent and across the street properties and then we will notify Apple Hill but eventually if you’re going to say notify everyone on Lynwood or everyone on Justin Court or everyone on Croton Park Colony, eventually – plus there’ll be a big orange sign there…

Mr. Robert Foley stated well, I think they’re stakeholders in it.  We’ve been discussing their street.  It’s in the scope.  I know it may involve a lot more notification but it is a public hearing and they’re the public and we’ve done it before.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t really know how many homes are involved in each one of these particular streets.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the reason I bring up Apple Hill is because there’s the direct connection and they’ve been very involved but it is not really past practice whether it was Kirquel or Furnace Dock Inc. to identify several close subdivisions and notify everybody in those subdivisions.  We’ve never really done that.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the difference here is thought that there’s a potential of a sports field and that will affect everybody on that road.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked from where to where? 

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I would say from 202 to Furnace Dock.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked wouldn’t that also affect the same people in all the various roads…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that would mean, when I say ‘we’ it’s them.  They would have to notify whoever that is: 200, 300 people which is fine if that’s what the Board wants.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I just want to make a little point and I quite frankly think that maybe Mr. Klarl really ought to chime in on this, I think it might be inappropriate for your Board to direct this applicant to provide public notice in a fashion different from and inconsistent with your Code.  I think it may represent a denial of equal protection to my client.  If the Town wishes to do something else I can’t stop you.  If you guys want to run around to mailboxes or knock on doors, you can but I think it’s wrong and I think it’s unfair to say to the Jacobson family, we want you to notify all these people because we in this situation decided you should.  It’s not what the Town Code says.  We’ll provide the mailing notice that we’re supposed to, we’ll do the publication notice that you’re supposed to but beyond that…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated yes but this isn’t quite like any other application because of the possible inclusion of the sports field.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded but that’s at the Town’s, again just so we’re clear, that’s because the Town is talking about asking us to do that, that’s not the applicant.  So, if the Town wishes to notify the Town then let’s be really fair, okay, now if we’re going to go there let’s go down the slope a little further.  Let’s notify all the soccer clubs, all the baseball and softball teams and everybody who may use it because you know what Steve, maybe we should have one line going out this way of the people that don’t want the fields and then let’s tell Jim Creighton to get a line that wraps around the far end of the room and out the door for everyone that does.  I mean no disrespect but I go to these meetings in too many places, once you start bending the rules.  Let’s analyze, the rule is there for a reason.  You’ve got a rule about public notice.  I’ll comply with your rule about public notice.  They’ll make sure I do.  You want to make something else, just make sure what you do is fair.  You’re going to have trouble.

Mr. Robert Foley stated grab all the athletic fields that may want to us it lined up then it will show the true picture of what that sports athletic field…
Mr. John Klarl stated obviously Mr. Steinmetz has a point that you’re supposed to treat then equally and we’ve always tried to treat people equally but we’ve had different applications where you’ve expanded the notice, particularly you’ve done it in commercial settings, but here what we’ve done sometimes is we’ve alerted homeowner’s associations instead of doing all the people in Peach Wood or Peach Tree whatever the subdivision was called, we’ve done homeowner’s associations so it’s not such a burden on the applicant.  But, we have expanded in the past, particularly if you remember the Cortlandt Colonial application where you expanded the notice because there weren’t houses immediately near there.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the Code is a minimum notification.

Mr. John Klarl stated but what we’ve done…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated which is why it’s your decision whether you want to notify more.  My only point is I don’t, on a case-by-case basis, make up that I’m going to do with respect to notification.  I do exactly what the Code says unless you tell me to do more and what Ed is pointing out is it’s within your purview to tell me to do more but the applicant is saying “where’s the line drawn?”
Mr. John Klarl responded he’s also saying something that the Town’s requested has triggered the further notification.

Mr. Robert Foley stated as John has said, it has been done but it’s been done through the homeowner groups…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we could notify all the homeowner’s group.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated send the notices out.

Mr. Robert Foley stated at the very least I think you have to notify Croton Park Colony group and Lynwood Gardens, Peach Wood.  There are individual homes that are very close to your main boulevard entrance, there are only one or two or three.  Are they included automatically?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded they’re immediately adjacent or across the street.

Mr. Robert Foley stated well, across the street where the intersection is at Furnace Dock Road, there’s one or two houses there.  That’s considered across the street?  No, there’s a property in between.  I think with Emery Ridge we had this problem because there were homes that were going to be impacted directly whether it was by view or traffic but there was a Mr., at the time, Santucci owned the property in between and therefore that precluded them being notified technically.

Mr. John Klarl stated Chris pointed out before, we also have our orange signs now which are a lot different than the old days then just mailing it, no one knew about the mailings.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and also you can put it on the website.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s always on the website.  So, I’ll do the homeowner’s associations of all of the subdivisions on Croton Avenue from 202 down to the playground as well as all of the Apple Hill residents and obviously the Code, all of the adjacent and the across the street property owners.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated sounds like a good solution, good job.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I’ll also move to request staff to make sure that the traffic study is done before – let’s say by mid-June.

Seconded .

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you Mr. Bianchi.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do we need to vote on that?

Mr. Robert Foley asked and Mr. Russo would be here at the June meeting?

Mr. Tim Cronin responded I’ll make sure of that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked my question is do we need to vote on it or can we just say that you are hereby instructed to do that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there was a motion and a quick second.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked was that a motion?  I’m sorry I didn’t understand it.  I thought you just wanted to remind him.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I made a motion.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you all.  Thank you for your patience as always.
PB 13-07    c.
Letters dated March 21, 2012 from Brian Panessa and Edmond Gemmola, R.A. regarding the construction of 3 temporary greenhouses and other site changes located at the Hilltop Nursery on Route 9A as shown on a drawing entitled “ Proposed Site Plan, Hilltop Nurseries, Inc.” prepared by Edmond Gemmola, R.A. dated March 21, 2012.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we were there on Sunday.  There was a site inspection and there was some discussion with the owner, Mr. Panessa, about making specific changes to the current drawings because he has done some things on site that were not approved and he had some ideas about some other changes he wants to make.  So, the conversation was very specific about him updating the drawings that he currently has and informing the Board about what changes he wants to make and so we asked him to have them ready for the June meeting.  Have you heard from him since?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, but the deadline is May 20th or whatever so when it he’s close to that…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated but very specifically asked him to show the old overlay with the new.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, okay.

Mr. Peter Daly asked Chris, does he have to get a Tree Permit on those trees he was proposing to cut, at least the ones that were on his property rather than the ones that were on the state property?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, and if you recall we talked specifically about him showing the ones that he took down and then showing the ones that he’s proposing to take down and then he would need to revised Tree Permit.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you’re going to give him a retroactive Tree Permit for the ones he cut down?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well no but I think he’s proposing to cut down new ones. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I understand that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I just want an order of magnitude, if he cut down 10 or 20 trees that’s something that you should know, then if he’s proposing to cut down another 2 or 3 trees then you should know that.  And then he is in front of the Board based on a violation so that could dictate to you whether you want an enhanced landscape plan or something like that.  He also violated the Tree Ordinance, maybe, depending on what his drawings show. The Resolution of that I guess would be in the adoption of an amended Site Plan?  I don’t know if there’s any “punishment” for that.

Mr. John Klarl responded the punishment is if you violate the Site Plan, there’s a violation procedure.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated he’s been violated and he’s before the Planning Board to remedy those violations.

Mr. John Klarl asked he’s before the Justice Court also?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I don’t believe yet.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated he hasn’t been ticketed, just violated.

Mr. John Klarl stated he was given a violation notice.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.  We need to understand the magnitude of the trees and then we’ll discuss that when we see it on his plan.

Mr. Peter Daly stated I move that we refer this back to staff for June.

Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked does anybody have any concerns or questions?

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS 

PB 17-84    a.
Letter dated April 18, 2012 from Joseph Marazino requesting Planning Board approval to establish a Hertz Rental Car facility, for the sale of used cars and to remove the existing Get It and Go Deli located at 3144 East Main Street (Cortlandt Boulevard).

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody here for that application? 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just introduce yourself for the record.

Mr. Joe Marazino stated owner of Get It and Go Deli on Route 6.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated do you want to discuss with us please.

Mr. Joe Marazino stated to have a Hertz Rental Car at this facility.  There’s a deli there now with a U-Haul.  The U-Haul was approved sometime in the past and I’d like to take out the deli and just pretty much do a car and truck rental facility.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked how many trucks do you expect on site at any time?

Mr. Joe Marazino asked cars or trucks?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded both.

Mr. Joe Marazino responded trucks would be between 5 to 6, cars 10 to 12.

Mr. Robert Foley asked the trucks would be in the rear?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded correct sir.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and the structure would be used as an office?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded that’s correct.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so there’ll be no more deli or any types of sales other than car rentals?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked there would also be possibly selling some of the cars you said?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded well Hertz sometimes has cars for sale and U-Haul also so if that pops up I would like to have a car or truck there for sale.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked nothing changes externally to the building just internal changes?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded no, nothing at all.  The deli itself that’s there now, the equipment will be out.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t know, definitely the sign along the road would change because that says “Get It and Go Deli.”  I don’t know if there’s any words on the old awning or anything that says “Get It and Go Deli.” 

Mr. Joe Marazino responded no nothing at all.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and the ice machine goes and all those things go? 

Mr. Joe Marazino responded the ice machine will probably stay there, yes.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked but you’d have new signage?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded more than likely have a Hertz and U-Haul.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi continued that you’d have to get approvals for.

Mr. Joe Marazino responded yes, like last time, correct.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is essentially just trucks and cars.

Mr. Joe Marazino responded trucks and cars, that’s it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked no deli?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded no deli.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked no sale of other stuff that you might need for a car?  You’re not anticipating selling other accessories and things like that?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded if anything it would be boxes for packing, that’s about it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked no maintenance?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded no, nothing like that at all.

Mr. John Klarl asked everything is kept inside the building?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded yes.

Mr. John Klarl asked there’s nothing outside other than the vehicles?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded just the trucks and cars that’s it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and the ice machine.

Mr. Joe Marazino responded and the ice machine, yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing though, it would be a Hertz office so-to-speak and you would be working at the Hertz office or would these gentlemen be or a combination of both.

Mr. Michael Regerio responded he’d be working as an agent for the Hertz Corporation.   Area Manager of Westchester Hertz Rent-a-Car.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked would you want any changes to the building for your color scheme or anything like that?

Mr. Michael Regerio responded not necessarily when it comes down to agencies type of thing it would be more of a sign like we spoke about.  That would come into play with the laws that govern that what we could put there.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re using the regular Hertz signage though?

Mr. Michael Regerio responded the Hertz Trademark yes.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and what would you do about – we asked about maintenance you said no maintenance – what about cleaning the cars and washing the cars and all that?

Mr. Michael Regerio responded we normally send vehicles into these agents clean and serviced already.  Minimal cleaning would have to be done.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so when the cars come back they go back to you?

Mr. Michael Regerio responded they go back and forth.  Most cars do a quick turnaround.  We’re talking about a quick vacuum and things like that not having a carwash facility.

Mr. John Klarl asked there’s no carwash because as you know we have an Enterprise not far from this and they do a carwash when they get the car back.

Mr. Michael Regerio responded correct, we wouldn’t be having that at this site tough.  We might be looking for a local vendor to do that if need be.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked what about Enterprise?

Mr. Michael Regerio responded no thanks.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Joe, you’d be running -- U-Haul’s coming back doing all the paperwork associated with that and the Hertz paperwork.

Mr. Joe Marazino responded that’s correct Chris, yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated unfortunately I seem to be the only one who always has to bring it up but we are trying to revitalize Cortlandt Boulevard, make it look very attractive.  If I can be very honest, there’s very little attractive about certain types of businesses and I want to know, are you planning on doing something to this site so that you can enhance the appearance of the site?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded I thought of that too, yes I did.  I would like to put maybe some trees out front, some bushes to make it look nicer from the front.  A painting on the building, a fresh coat of paint. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated maybe some planters or something.

Mr. Joe Marazino responded planters that would be a good idea, it needs that, right.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and the other issue which is more of an operational issue is, your site plan shows where all of these things are supposed to go but we’re all up and down Route 6 a lot and I know you get Hertz trucks back or you get a U-Haul truck back or you get a U-Haul wagon hitch back or something and a lot of that is out by Route 6 and it’s really got to be towards the back because if you have good signage I don’t think people drive by necessarily and need to see the U-Haul by the road to say “oh, that’s the U-Haul place.”

Mr. Joe Marazino responded okay.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you planning on any pavement markings to indicate sort of a drop-off area or something?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded yes, there is now.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked there is now?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so that whole area that exists there now, it’s quite an extensive area, that’s all yours to use for these trucks.  There seems to be a what not like similar one at a gas station nearby where it’s very limited.

Mr. Joe Marazino responded yes, that’s a much larger area.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and your entrance/exit would remain the same on Route 6?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded correct, yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked what about in the larger scheme of things, not just Cortlandt Boulevard but you’re part of – Westrock owns this and gave you permission, what about when this proposed Westrock development, if that progresses along – what happens to you guys?  Are you part of that then?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded more than likely yes, we would be closing back up.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t know if I’ve actually talked to Mr. Marazino, but over the years, tenants of those buildings have called to find out what’s going on and as you know the Westrock case came in into 2006, so in 2006 I was probably telling them, “Oh, you’re going to have at least 2 or 3 years.”  Well, you know that’s turned into 6 and who knows but you go when the site is re-developed.

Mr. Joe Marazino responded yes, my time comes I’m gone.

Mr. John Klarl asked what’s your lease term?  How many years?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded it’s month-to-month.

Mr. John Klarl asked so you know you could be terminated at a month’s notice?

Mr. Joe Marazino responded they gave me 90 days.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is this approved by motion or is this – is there anything else you’re missing?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded except, to be honest, the site has expanded a little and maybe you could approve it subject to making sure that he works with the Department of Technical Services on some beautification issues and make sure we actually follow through on some of the plantings.

Mr. John Klarl stated we did that recently with Enterprise.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that was going to be what I was about to say but I’m glad you brought it up.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I make a motion that we approve this application subject to satisfaction of Department of Technical Services in terms of the specifics of the Site Plan and potential improvements to the site in terms of landscaping.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn.



*



*



*
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, JUNE 5, 2012
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